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Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the document referenced in Item 9A or 10A, as heretofore changed, remains unchanged and in full force and effect.

15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)

30-105-04

EXCEPTION TO SF 30

APPROVED BY OIRM 11-84

STANDARD FORM 30 (Rev. 10-83)

Prescribed by GSA

FAR (48 CFR) 53.243

Amendment 0004 is issued to incorporate the following questions/answers.  The proposal due date is extended by one day to 8 Sep 04,

 3:00 (CT).

13.  Q.  Reference: L-1, Part II, b. and c. The "c" citation specifies the format for the presentation of Past Performance Project Descriptions.

 However, in the directed format, there is no provision for narrative to describe the actual work performed or its similarities in size, scope

 and complexity to the PKI O&S project. Please clarify.

A.  Include the project/contract description as an introductory paragraph before you begin inputting the information from the numbered

 paragraphs in "c."  Follow the introductory paragraph with 1. Contract/Order Number, 2. Project Name, etc.  
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HC1013-04-R-5022

X

9B. DATED (SEE ITEM 11)

06-Aug-2004

10B. DATED  (SEE ITEM 13)

9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.

11. THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS

X

The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in Item 14.  The hour and date specified for receipt of Offer  

X

is extended,

is not extended.

Offer must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended by one of the following methods: 

(a) By completing Items 8 and 15, and returning

copies of the amendment; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the offer submitted;

or (c) By separate letter or telegram which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers.  FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO BE 

RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN  

REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER.  If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by telegram or letter, 

provided each telegram or letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified.

12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA (If required)

13. THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS.

IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT/ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14.

A. THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO:  (Specify authority) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE

 CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM 10A.

B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT/ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes in paying 

office, appropriation date, etc.) SET FORTH IN ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43.103(B).

C. THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF:

D. OTHER (Specify type of modification and authority)

E. IMPORTANT:   Contractor

is not,   

is required to sign this document and return

copies to the issuing office.

14. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION  (Organized by UCF section headings, including solicitation/contract subject matter

 where feasible.)
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SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE 

SUMMARY OF CHANGES  

SECTION  SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE 

The following have been added by full text: 

        QUESTIONS/ANSWERS CONTINUED
14.  Reference: C-5 (Specific Tasks), 5.3 and 5.4. Reference 5.3 is titled "Task 3 - Systems Integration and Release." Reference 5.4 is titled "Task 6 - Program Support." Are Task 4 and Task 5 missing?

A.  This is a mistake.  Section 5.4 should read Task 4

15.  Q.  Reference:  B – Supplies or Services and Prices.  Each Item Number identifies a Total Estimated Price and a Ceiling Price.  Please explain the difference and how they are represented in the evaluated price?  

A.  There is no difference.  This is the way the procurement system generates the CLINs.

16.  Q.  Reference: B – Supplies or Services and Prices.   Item Number 0001 indicates the period of performance for this CLIN is from date of award through 30 November 05.  In order to provide consistency for evaluation, request you provide a date for the award as the basis for estimating the prices for this period.

A.  For evaluation purposes, you can assume the date of award will be 15 Sep 04.  

17.  Q.  Reference: Section 5.2.1 of the Statement of Work (SOW). A Management Plan is referenced, but a Management Plan is not listed as a deliverable.  Is it a deliverable?  Please clarify.

A.  This was an oversight and one will be needed.  Contractor format is sufficient.  The SOW will be modified to reflect this prior to contract award.

18.  Q.  Reference: Section 5.2.1 of the Statement of Work (SOW).  A Management Plan is referenced.  Is the Management Plan a document the contractor develops or is it provided by the Government?

A.  It will be developed by the contractor.

19.  Q.  Reference: Section 5.2.1 of the SOW.  This references a Certificate Policy Statement (CPS). Will the Government provide a copy of the CPS?

A.  Yes, we will provide upon contract award.

20.  Q.  The SOW References a Configuration Management (CM) Plan.  A CM plan is not listed as a deliverable.  Is the CM Plan to be developed by the contractor or provided by the Government?

A.  We currently have a plan and CM database.  Contractor will have to manage and modify as necessary.

21.  Q.  The solicitation does not designate key personnel.  Will the Government identify those positions they consider to be “key”?

A.  The contractor must tell the government which personnel in your proposal are key for successful contract performance.  

22.  Q.  Please confirm that no past performance information is to be included in the oral presentation.

A.  You may include Past performance if you feel it will support elements of your technical proposal.

23.  Q.  Reference: Page 75 of 77, Section M.  Please confirm that only the evaluation criteria in “Factor 2: Technical/Management Solution” applies to the oral presentation.

A.  See answer to 10 above, any information obtained during orals will be used as part of the evaluation.

24.  Q.  Reference: Page 69 of 77, Section L, paragraph d.  The reference states, “Each proposal will be submitted electronically via e-mail to DITCO…” Does this mean that an electronic copy of the oral presentation must be submitted electronically, as well as the written portions of the proposal?  

A.  This was corrected via amendment 0001.  All written portions of the proposal should be uploaded onto the contracting opportunities website.  The oral presentation does not have to be uploaded.  

25.  Q.  Reference: Page 69 of 77, Section L, Part I, paragraph a.  The reference states, “Include 5 hard copies of the presentation, one softcopy of presentation and also 5 hard copies of resumes of the key personnel to be ….”  Should these copies be mailed/delivered in advance of the presentation for delivery by the specified proposal due date or does the Government want the contractor to provide these copies at the date/time of the Contractors’ oral presentations?

A.  Please bring hard copies with you to the oral presentation.

26.  Q.  Will Oral Presentations be recorded or videotaped?

A.  No.

27.  Q.  Since questions and requests for clarification will potentially effect the development and content of contractors’ oral presentations and there is less than 6 business days before the due date, will the Government issue an extension?

A.  No extension will be granted.

28.  Q.  We would like clarification on the Period of Performance.  Page 2 of the solicitation states "Period of performance is date of award through 30 Nov 05."  With an option on page 3  "Period of performance is 1 Dec 05 through 30 Nov 06."  On page 12 in the SOW it states "The period of performance is expected to be three (3) months from contract award date in FY04 with 2 option years and will be incrementally funded."

A.  The POP in the SOW, Para 7 (page 12) is incorrect.

29.  We did not see specific labor categories called out in the solicitation.  Our project team is planning to use our approved GSA schedule labor categories and rates, is this acceptable? 

A.  Yes, that's acceptable.

30.  Q.  Is the GFE list in the solicitation a current listing? Will an updated 

list be provided upon award?

A.  See amendment 0003 to the solicitation that was just posted.

31.  Q.  Section B indicates T&M but, page 4 of 5 in the solicitation indicates FFP.  

A.  Contract type is T&M, but the labor rates will be fixed for the life of the contract.  

32.  Q.  Page 7, section 5.1 – Are the only locations of the DoD PKI to be maintained at the DECCs at Chambersburg, PA and Denver, CO? 

A.  We also have a JITC testing site , however, the contractor will not be running these sites. This contract is for tier three support as well as routine patches and process changes for security vulnerabilities and operational issues.  All changes are tested and implemented at JITC first and then implemented at DECCs and Operational test suite (this contract)

33.  Q.  Page 4 – Will the government consider a fixed lab fee as an allowable Other Direct Cost? 

A.  This could be an allowable ODC as long as it isn’t also part of your labor rate build-up.  As part of your normal business operations, the government assumes lab work would be required, and would already be included in your indirect rates.  If you charge lab fees as an ODC, you will need to provide pricing support to clarify why lab fees are direct costs versus why they are not included in your overhead rates.     

34.  Q.  Page 4  - Where in the Cost/Price Proposal would the government like to see the cost for moving the lab equipment? 

A.   We would assume that this would be handled as an ODC, since this would require possible hiring of a moving company, and charges associated thereto.  

35.  Q.  Page 4 – Can lab migration costs be considered ODCs? 

A.  Charges associated with hiring a moving company can be considered an ODC.  

36.  Q.  In what format(s) will the existing system documentation (e.g., current SSAA, installation &configuration procedures and scripts, CM baselines, etc.) be provided? 

A. Microsoft Word, hard copy, Rational Database and other forms yet to be determined.

37.  Q.  If someone other than the incumbent wins will there be any overlap/transition period?

A.   Yes, we are trying to provide a one month overlap  but will depend on contract award date.  Current contract ends on15 Oct.

38.  Q.  Project Objective:  The objective section states that the contractor will supply necessary personnel, materials, equipment and facilities.  We interpret the RFP to require only personnel and that we would work only in the DoD facilities.  Is this correct?  

A.  See answers to questions 6 and 8, Amendment 0003.  No, at the time being, it is planned that all work will be performed in contractor facilities.  This is tier 3 helpdesk support.

39.  Q.  How many incumbent people are used today to support tasks 1, 2 and 3?  

A.  See answer to question 11, Amendment 0003.  The government is not satisfied with the current level vs funding so would like to see what you propose unrestricted by what we have today.

40.  Q.  Any restrictions on hiring previous incumbent staff?

A.  There are no restrictions on hiring staff from the incumbent.  

41.  Q.  PKI DOD Lab.  Is the lab physically located in Falls Church, VA?  
A. No, it is currently located in Fairfax, VA but require that the lab be local in the Washington DC area (Northern VA, Montgomery, MD, DC, Prince Georges County.
42.  Q.  Number of new releases/upgrades per year related to PKI solution.  

A.  This contractor will only be responsible for what is actually in operations so this question does not apply.  It will not deal with new development.  Only development changes by this vendor will be for operational patches and IAVA compliance.  Will be aiming for about 4 releases per year, but they will only be deployed at the operational lab contractor at the same time that they are being deployed at our two operational centers (Denver and Chambersburg).

43.  Q.  Would we use the existing test procedures and enhance from there or would we be expected to bring new test procedures to the table.  

A.  The contractor will be receiving all CM documentation and process.  The contractor will use existing procedures and will add enhancements as needed.  The only testing will be testing of patches and or diagnosing operational issues.  All formal testing occurs at JITC prior to deployment.

44.  Q.  How many people currently staff the lab?  

A.  See answer to question 11, Amendment 0003.  Please see my answer above as well as my answer to the question last week.  Do not want to provide.

45.  Q.  Is there a segregation of duties between NIPRNet and SIPRNet duties?  

A.  No, SIPRNET looks just like NIPRNET so will only need to test in NIPRNET environment.  All changes except for CAC issuance will be applied to SIPRNET as well as NIPRNET.  There will be no need for SIRPNET lab support in contractor facilities.

46.  Q.  What is the deliverable due 30 days after award?  Is that generic test procedures that the lab would follow or specific to an actual test?  

A.  The SOW Paragraphs 5.1 and 5.1.1 states at least 30 Days before a test event.  This would entail using existing testing procedures and any test specific procedures for the particular test.  This would be submitted to the government for review so that JITC can review and recommend changes as needed.  So 30 days before a test event, you would submit actual test procedures using generic test procedures as the basis

47.  Q.  Is this a shared or dedicated lab?  

A.  Dedicated and protected space but this does not mean the overall space cannot be shared with another contractor customer as long as appropriate process are in place.

48.  Q.  What information will be transitioned from the old contractor if we win this proposal?  

A.  Existing procedures, test lab diagrams, change management procedures, architectures, etc.  Every thing that exists today.  Procedures, CM database, equipment, etc.

49.  Q.  Please explain the difference between the I&T system and the DoD PKI O&M system.  Is one testing and the other staging?  Are they in the same location?  

A.  The I&T is just a test suite for preliminary testing.  The O&M system is configured exactly like the operations systems and is best used to ensure changes do not break system and problem diagnosis.  They both should be co-located.  The contractor will need to determine how and when the different suites are used.

50.  Q.  Historically, how frequently are there changes in the production environment that require test lab environment update?  

A.  The Government purchases all equipment but it is safe to say that we stand up at least one new box per year while several old boxes will be retired in the next few years.

51.  Q.  Is the lab operated on a single shift or do we staff multiple shifts at peak test times? 

A.   This is not the operational system!  There are no need for shift work.  The only need for after normal duty hours is for on-call support in case of an operational issue.  If an issue occurs during the night and or weekend that must be fixed immediately (requires diagnostics to determine cause and correctively action) then contractor will provide name or names to contact.

52.  Q.  Please explain the nature of the equipment list.  Is that the full list of equipment that we would be responsible for managing?  Is this all in the test lab?  

A.  See Amendment 3, question 8.  The equipment list includes all items currently in the operational lab plus or minus the inventory findings.  The government will be responsible for equipment replacement and all hardware/software maintenance agreements.

53.  Q.  Are there existing SLA’s in place for the test labs?  Can those be provided?  

A.  Do not understand question.  There is no need for an SLA since this is not a government facility.  If you mean how quickly we need the contractor to respond to an operational issue, then we need someone on call to assist when problems might occur.  There is only one formal test lab and that is JITC.  All changes go through our PKI test lab at JITC for operational testing prior to deployment.  We have an SLA with JITC and the operating centers.  The government manages these SLAs

54.  Q.  Who is responsible for managing HW/SW maintenance agreement?  

A.  The government with input from the contractor

55.  Q.  SOW 5.2, Operational System --- How many people currently staff the Operational System per shift?  

A.  The contract has nothing to do with the operations of the system other than CM and operational patches.  This contract will NOT operate the operational PKI.  See answer #39 above and also Amendment 0003, question #11. 

56.  Q.  What are the SLA’s related to the Production Environment?  

A.  This information is not needed for this contract.  Has nothing to do with the work to be performed under this contract.

57.  Q.  What is the existing trouble ticket system?  

A.  CM is Rational and we use the DISA computing services trouble ticket system Remedy.

58.  Q.  What is the process for performing log collection and monitoring and could we upgrade the process based on our best practices?  

A.  Monitoring systems are being developed under separate contract by NSA.  Contractor can propose process changes for improved log collection and analysis.  Monitoring data will be available to the contractor.

59.  Q.  Do current requirements require network segregation between test and production environments ?

A.  Most definitely!!  This work is only for the operational tier 3 support lab.  The production/operational systems operate out of our computing centers.  The contractor will not be responsible for this operation.

60.  Q.  What kind of source code management  and test automation tools you have?

A.  All information is stored in Rational.  COTS code is escrowed but access to COTS vendors for technical assistance is readily available.

61.  Q.  What is the list of 3rd party PKI software we would have to support?  

A.  We use Netscape PKI CMS software, webservers, and directories.  All servers are currently UNIX Sun boxes. 

62.  Q.  Does the contractor have to develop/maintain custom code? 

A.  Only patches many of which are developed by COTS supplier.  There may be some webpage development and/or modification.  All new development will be performed by development contractors.

63.  Q.  If customer code is required, what programming language skills are needed? 

A.  Languages can include C and Java and some Perl

64.  Q.  How many incumbent people currently develop and maintain custom code?  

A.  There is currently no significant incumbents developing and maintaining custom code.  PKI uses COTs products and only uses limited custom code.  We are not aware of any current activity by the current contractor

65.  Q.  How many unscheduled releases happened last year?  

A.  This does not apply to this contract and would have not bearing on their proposal.

66.  Q.  What is the allowable amount time for planned (schedule maintenance) and unplanned (emergency maintenance) downtime?  

A.  We have this incorporated into our operating SLA.  The government will schedule maintenance as appropriate along with our partner the Defense Manpower Data Center.  All downtimes must be coordinated with both organizations to minimize CAC PKI issuance downtimes.  Emergency maintenance for an operation failure most be repaired as soon as possible.  The contractor will only be called if there is an issue that cannot be resolved by operators and PMO staff.  Computing Services handles all hardware failures such as disc failures.

67.  Q.  Are business continuity plan and disaster recovery plan part of the scope of this project?  If so what are the recovery time objective and recovery point objective? 

A.  No, developmental contractor revising plan and Computing Services will implement.

68.  Q.  Do they operate a central or distributed CRL?  

A.  This is still being determined.  Should not impact this contract.

69.  Q.  What is the SLA for Technical Support?  

A.  Do not understand question.  There is no SLA for tech support.  We need help when a problem occurs that cannot be resolved by operators and/or PMO staff.

70.  Q.  Is PKI technical support 24x7?   

A.  Normal technical support is during business hours however, someone must be reachable during nights and weekends if an operation incident occurs.  

71.  Q.  How many incumbent PKI people are on call?  

A.  There should be one person on call who has the knowledge to trouble shoot and resolve issue.

72.  Q.  With regards to the oral presentation, please describe the configuration of the room in terms of size, shape and layout style of seating.

A.   The presentation will take place in one of the DISA conference rooms, approximate size 9x12, conference table in center of room.  There will be a projection system that you can connect your laptop into.  Chairs are on rollers.  

73.  Q.  Please describe the lighting environment for the oral presentation.  For example, does the room have multi- zone lighting? Is both fluorescent and incandescent lighting available? How is the lighting allocated and is there the ability to dim lighting?

A.  Florissant lighting without the ability to dim it.    

SECTION A - SOLICITATION/CONTRACT FORM 

                The required response date/time has changed from 07-Sep-2004 03:00 PM to 08-Sep-2004 03:00 PM. 

(End of Summary of Changes) 

